ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 28, 2017
10: 00 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator M ke Dunl eavy, Chair
Senator Cathy G essel

Senat or John Coghi | |

Senat or Denni s Egan

Senator David WIlson (online)

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO. 1

"An Act making a special appropriation fromthe earnings reserve
account for the paynent of permanent fund dividends; and
providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD

SENATE BILL NO 2

“"An Act increasing the amount of the 2016 permanent fund
dividend and directing the Departnent of Revenue to pay a
suppl emental dividend to eligible individuals; and providing for
an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 1

SHORT TI TLE: APPROP: 2016 PFD SUPPLEMENTAL PAYNENT
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DUNLEAVY

01/ 09/ 17 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/9/17

01/ 18/ 17 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 17 (S) STA, FIN

01/ 24/ 17 (S) STA AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
01/ 24/ 17 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 24/ 17 (S) M NUTE( STA)

01/ 28/ 17 (S) STA AT 10: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 2

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- January 28, 2017



SHORT TI TLE: 2016 PFD SUPPLEMENTAL PAYNMENT
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DUNLEAVY

01/ 09/ 17 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/9/17
01/18/17 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 17 (S) STA, FIN

01/ 24/ 17 (S) STA AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
01/ 24/ 17 (S Heard & Held

01/ 24/ 17 (S) M NUTE( STA)

01/ 28/ 17 (S) STA AT 10: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

G NA RI TACCO, Staff

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overvi ew of SB

DR. JACK HI CKEL, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

KEN FI SHER, representing hinself
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

AL TI NG.EY, representing hinself
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of

M KE ALEXANDER, representing hinself
Bi g Lake, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

EDWARD W TBECK, representing hinself
Kenai, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Did not provide a position.

DAVI D NEES, representing hinself
Cooper Landi ng, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

J.R  MYERS, representative

Al aska Constitution Party

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2-

1 and SB 2.

1 and SB 2.

1 and SB 2.

SB 1 and SB 2.

1 and SB 2.

1 and SB 2.

1 and SB 2.

January 28, 2017



W LLI AM DEATON, representing hinself
Cordova, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

BARBARA LEARMONTH, representing herself
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 1 and SB 2.

M CHAEL CHAMBERS, representative

United for Liberty-Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

Rl CK HALFORD, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

CHARLES MCKEE, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

DAVI D BOYLE, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

PAUL KENDALL, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

MARY NANUWAK, representing herself
Bet hel , Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

CHARLENE ARNESON, representing herself
VWhittier, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

DR. VERNON SM TH, Professor of Econom cs and Law

Chapman Uni versity

Orange, California

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

SALLY POLLEN, representing herself

Pal mer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- January 28, 2017



GECRCE PI ERCE, representing hinself
Kasi | of, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

FRED STURMAN, representing hinself
Kenai, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

M KE NAVARRE, representing hinself
Kenai, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 1 and SB 2.

DONALD WESTLUND, representing hinself
Ket chi kan, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 1 and SB 2.

JAKE JACOBSEN, representing hinself
Kodi ak, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

M KE COONS, representing hinself
Pal mer, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

JEFFREY VAN ZANDT, representing hinself
Tok, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

JIM "HOTAI" WLLIAMS, representing hinself
Val dez, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

DR. BARBARA HANEY, representing herself
North Pol e, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

JAMES SQUYRES, representing hinself
Del t ana, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

PAMELA GOOD, representing herself
Del t ana, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

DENNY KAY WEATHERS, representing herself

Hawki ns | sl and-Prince WIIlians Sound, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- January 28, 2017



RHONA VAN ZANDT, representing herself
Tok, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

GARY MCDONALD, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

CHRI STI NE NEES, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

FRI EDRI CH ZI MVERVAN, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

W LLI AM W\EATHERBY, representing hinsel f
Ki ng Sal non, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

CHARLOTTE NAYAGAK, representing herself
Chevak, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

BYRON CHARLES, representing hinself
Ket chi kan, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

VI CTOR NAYAGAK, representing hinself
Chevak, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

TOM BOUTI N, representing hinself
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

JEANI NE ST. JOHN, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 1 and SB 2.

LAURA CLARK- MAKETA, representing herself
Pal mer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

W LLI AM TOPEL, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- January 28, 2017



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1

JI M SYKES, representing hinself
Pal mer, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1

ANDREW FRAI LERY- AFANASYEV, representing hinself
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1

TARYN LUSKLEET, representing herself
North Pol e, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1

VANESSA PLATTER, representing herself
Eagl e R ver, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1

GERRI T SOUTHLAND, representing hinself
W angel |, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1

NORAH SMART, representing herself
Hooper Bay, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1

EVELYNN TREFON, representing herself
Newhal en, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1

W LLI AM REI NER, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1

ELI ZABETH BREUKER, representing herself
Del t ana, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1

JOHN SONI'N, representing hinself

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1
DELI CE CALCOTE, representing herself

Sutton, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1

ROSS Bl ELI NG representing hinself

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6-

and

and

and

and

and

and

and

and

and

and

and

and

January 28, 2017

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB



Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

PAMVELA BRODI E, representing herself
Hormer, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

10: 00: 54 AM

CHAIR M KE DUNLEAVY called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 10:00 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators G essel, Egan, Coghill, WIson (online), and
Chai r Dunl eavy.

SB 1- APPROP: 2016 PED SUPPLEMENTAL PAYMENT
SB 2-2016 PFD SUPPLEMENTAL PAYMENT

10: 01: 13 AM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced that the purpose of the neeting is to
hear testinmony on SB 1 and SB 2. He asked for summations on SB 1
and SB 2.

10: 01: 33 AM

G NA RITACCO Staff, Senator Dunleavy, Al aska State Legislature,
Juneau, Al aska, explained that SB 1 is an appropriation bill
that will appropriate the noney to restore the dividend that
amounts to approximately $1,030 per person, which is a total of
$683.23 mllion; SB 2 is the directive for the A aska Depart nent
of Revenue to imediately payout the dividend once both bills
are passed.

10: 02: 09 AM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced that the commttee will commence wth
invited testinony.

10: 02: 40 AM

At ease.

10: 03: 01 AM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY called the commttee back to order. He announced
t hat invited testifier Dr . Jack Hickel will address the

commttee. He detailed that Dr. Hickel is a famly physician
wor ki ng for the Southcentral Foundati on.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- January 28, 2017



10: 03: 09 AM

DR JACK HI CKEL, representing hinmself, Anchorage, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2. He set forth that there
shoul d not be changes or capping of the permanent fund. He added
that earnings should not be spent wthout the vote of the
people. He asserted that the permanent fund dividend (PFD)
bel ongs to the people and is guaranteed through a constitutional
amendnent .

10: 08: 56 AM
At ease.

10: 09: 31 AM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY called the commttee back to order. He announced
that the commttee will hear public testinony.

10: 10: 13 AM

KEN FI SHER, representing hinself, Juneau, Alaska, testified in
support of SB 1 and SB 2. He said the governor unilaterally took
away over $1,000 from each Alaskan and it's up to the
Legislature to defend the PFD | aw against the unilateral action
of the governor. He asserted that state governnent should live
within its means.

10: 13: 26 AM

AL TINGEY, representing hinself, Juneau, Al aska, testified in
opposition of SB 1 and SB 2. He asserted that Al askans have not
earned a cent that the state seenms bound to give to them He
advised that funds would be better spent on correcting issues
for the popul ation. He suggested that an educati on endownent be
set up for children rather than allow ng parental control.

10: 15: 27 AM

M KE  ALEXANDER, representing hinself, Big Lake, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2. He set forth that the
governor had taken away $1 billion from Al aska's econony and
hurt a lot of folks, especially the poorest nmenbers of society.

10: 17: 54 AM
EDWARD W TBECK, representing hinself, Kenai, Alaska, did not
provi de a position on SB 1 or SB 2.

10: 20: 03 AM

DAVID NEES, representing hinself, Cooper Landing, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2. He asserted that the
governor's action on the PFD negatively inpacted his famly.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- January 28, 2017



10: 21: 43 AM

J.R  MWERS, Chairman, Alaska Constitution Party, Sol dotna,
Al aska, testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2. He set forth that
the Alaska Constitution Party 1is adamantly opposed to the
governor's unilateral and unprecedented action that interferes
with a contract with the people of Alaska. He said the Al aska
Constitution Party views the PFD as conpensation for Al askans'
loss of mneral and subsurface rights. He remarked that the
money for the PFD is best spent by the people not by the
government. He asserted that government should be downsized to a
sensible level. He said the governor's action created an adverse
effect on the econony in addition to placing two percent of the
state's popul ati on bel ow t he poverty line.

10: 23: 17 AM

WLLI AM DEATON, representing hinmself and famly, Cordova
Al aska, testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2. He said what the
governor did was wong and did so without the Legislature giving
its okay. He set forth that cutting the PFD w Il have the nost
adverse effect on the private-sector econony. He asserted that
the current deficient is due to the governnent spending too nuch
wi t hout | ooking to the future.

10: 25: 06 AM

BARBARA  LEARMONTH, representing herself, Juneau, Al aska,
testified in opposition of SB 1 and SB 2. She set forth that she
supports the governor's actions from the previous year. She
asserted that she would rather hear talk about a responsibility
to the state, its infrastructure and children's future rather
than a right to unearned noney. She opined that the permanent
fund is a "permanent fund" that m ght be needed |later and not a
"permanent dividend." She asserted that |ast year's decision by
the governor was necessitated due to the Legislature not com ng
up with a solution. She encouraged the Legislature to come up
with a fiscal solution first and then see what's the best
out cone for the PFD

10: 27: 47 AM

M CHAEL CHAMBERS, representative, United for Liberty-Al aska,
Anchorage, Al aska, testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2. He
stated that he is adamantly opposed to the restructuring of the
permanent fund. He set forth that Alaska has a very proud
history of <creating the very first paynent of the earth's
resources directly to the people and the history should be
pr ot ect ed.

10: 30: 17 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- January 28, 2017



RI CK HALFORD, representing hinself, Anchorage, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 1 and SB 2. He disclosed that he is a forner
| egi slator and noted being the House-majority |eader when the
ori ginal PFD was passed.

He supported the PFD legislation and continued to support the
PFD agai nst every effort to change it. He pointed out that nost
of those in power have gone to the permanent fun when noney was
needed, the nobst regressive possible source. He reveal ed that
the original amendnent was changed in the Legislature
specifically to allow for the dedication of permnent-fund
income, the added |anguage was the last five words, "Unless
otherwise provided by law." He explained that the anendnent
allowed for the dedication, which is in the law today, in
addition to requiring inflation proofing and divi dends.

He disclosed that there was a lot of effort in the permanent
fund discussion of how the averaging worked and how the
inflation was calculated; that far exceeded the discussion of
the dividend' s anobunt. He stated that the dividend s purpose was
to equalize sonme of the benefits that were going in huge neasure
to wealth, power, influence and all of the other things that
drive the political process; but, other than the first dividend,
which cane from the general fund because the noney hadn't
accrued in the permanent fund yet, there was never the need of
an appropriation.

He said he supported the efforts and purposes in SB 1 and SB 2,
but the question currently in court is over "appropriation." He
asserted that the inflation proofing and dividend in the |law are
specifically provided for and allowed by the constitution, they
are not optional and the corporation violated the |law on bad
|l egal advice. He remarked that appropriation for accounting
purposes or for knowl edge of what's going on does not hurt
anyt hing, but the appropriation was totally unnecessary.

He said taking over $600 mllion out of an economy that is spent
fromthe bottom by individual choices over a short period has an
astronom cal inpact that approaches the entire payroll of state
and |ocal governnent. He opined that the inpact has spread the
recession that was I|imted to the oil industry and their
contractors to the whole econony; it is the nost regressive
econoni ¢ act since statehood and the veto totally separates the
dividend from the permanent fund itself, resulting in a vehicle
that no | onger protects a prudent investnent policy to avoid bad
| oans or bad investnments and no |onger acts as an avenue to
protect and |et people understand that inflation proofing is

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- January 28, 2017



essential to the future of the fund. He set forth that permanent
fund itself is under attack due to the separation.

MR. HALFORD referenced a 1995 annual report from the Al aska
Per manent Fund Corporation that stated the foll ow ng:

The permanent fund earnings are rightfully owned by
the people of Alaska; they are not gifts bestowed by a
generous governnent, they are constitutional rights.

He contended that he does not buy every aspect of the permanent
fund earnings being a constitutional right, but he contended
that the people of Al aska shoul d deci de.

He set forth that the battle the state sees itself in has been
repeated over and over again since the inception of the
permanent fund. He opined that the dividend funds everything
from the bottom while the governnent funds everything from the
t op.

He summari zed that the permanent fund speaks for itself by its
record and encouraged the Legislature to let the people decide
what to do with it. He asserted that the permanent fund is the
one thing in the state of Alaska that is not broken.

10: 37: 50 AM
CHARLES  MCKEE, representing hi msel f, Anchor age, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

10:41: 52 AM

DAVI D BOYLE, representing hinself, Anchorage, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 1 and SB 2. He asked that people in the |ower
i nconme brackets be taken into consideration.

10: 45: 16 AM

PAUL KENDALL, representing hinself, Anchorage, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 1 and SB 2. He opined that that the bills would
get back the "theft" of $1,032. He comended |egislators who
have stood on behalf of the "little people" against the "theft."

10: 49: 38 AM

MARY NANUWAK, representing herself, Bethel, Al aska, testified in
support of SB 1 and SB 2. She asked that |egislators think about
rural Al askans before making their decisions and consider the
horrendous conditions they |ive under.

10: 54: 09 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- January 28, 2017



CHARLENE ARNESON, representing herself, VWhittier, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2. She asserted that
| egi slators can come up with a good solution w thout tapping the
PFD first.

10: 57: 31 AM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY recognized |legislators online: Senator David
Wlson and Representative Colleen Sullivan-Leonard. He asked
that Dr. Vernon Smith, an invited testifier, address the
conmittee. He detailed that Dr. Smth received the Nobel Prize
for Econom c Science in 2002 and is now a professor at Chapman
Uni versity.

10: 58: 10 AM

DR. VERNON SM TH, Professor of Econom cs and Law, Chapnan
University, Orange, California, testified in support of SB
1 and SB 2. He nentioned that he did not speak as an
Al askan, but as one who |oves Alaska very nuch and noted
that he has been going to Alaska fairly regularly since
1965 and feels alnost like a citizen.

He set forth that Alaska did an incredibly innovative thing
when the state created the Al aska Permanent Fund. He set
forth that the permanent fund is unprecedented in the sense
that it recognizes that the state's natural resources
bel ongs to the people and at |east sone of the revenue and
value from those resources should be set aside for direct
distribution to the people. He admtted that nost
governnents give the people nothing and the individual
citizens in the few that have sone sort of a permanent fund
do not have rights in their funds; that is an inportant
principle that has the potential of reducing an inequality
in a way that's not really a burden in terns of transfers
t hrough the tax system

He said if the Legislature cannot support them then a
referendum is inportant where Al askans have an opportunity
to approve any diversion of their dividend incone. He
pointed out that the state had a large share of the
permanent-fund income and asking why better energency
provisions were not made is an inportant question. He
calculated that the Alaska Permanent Fund was worth a
remar kabl e $74,000 for every man, wonman and child in the
state. He opined that if any change is nmade to the
permanent fund, Al askans should be allowed access to the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- January 28, 2017



principle to invest in Al askan businesses or other ways to
hel p devel op the Al askan econony.

11: 01: 24 AM

SALLY POLLEN, representing herself, Palmer, Alaska, testified in
support of SB 1 and SB 2. She noted that the dividend noney
taken from Alaskans is sitting in an account and inquired what
is to be done with the noney. She pointed out that the noney set
aside would not make a dent in Alaska's fiscal crisis. She
opined that the noney taken from the permanent fund was far
reachi ng and robbed what bel onged to future generations.

11: 04: 58 AM

CGECRCE PIERCE, representing hinmself, Kasilof, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 1 and SB 2. He set forth that the PFD is nost
important to children, Alaska natives, and rural areas. He
opi ned that taking half of the PFD has nade the people poorer.
He pointed out that the University of Al aska-Anchorage Institute
of Social and Econom c Research (ISER) reported that a PFD cut
has a higher inpact than other tax options. He sunmarized that
the legislation is broken, not the PFD

11: 08: 24 AM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY specified that the previous year's budget bills
that were passed by both bodies had an appropriation in the
|l egislation for a full dividend that many |egislators voted for,
but the appropriation has hal ved through the governor's veto.

11: 08: 59 AM

FRED STURMAN, representing hinself, Kenai, Al aska, testified in
support of SB 1 and SB 2. He remarked that the Legislature spent
nore noney than the state could afford to spend. He pointed out
that bills to cut spending were never introduced when the state
had a | ot of noney. He asked that people who don't have a | ot of
resources should not be taxed. He set forth that a |ocal Al askan
can spend their noney better than the governnent can.

11:11: 00 AM

CHAIR DUNLEAVY recogni zed that Senator Tom Begich and
Representative George Rauscher were in attendance. He announced
that the next testifier is Mke Navarre, mayor of Kenai and
former Al aska |egislator.

11:11:19 AM

M KE NAVARRE, representing hinself, Kenai, Al aska, testified in
opposition of SB 1 and SB 2. He set forth that the spending
deci sions need to be in the context of an overall fiscal plan so

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- January 28, 2017



that the current fiscal crisis does not turn into a full-blown
econonic crisis for Al aska.

MR. NAVARRE opined that last year's actions by the governor
sinmply reduced spending, not dissimlar from the Legislature's
di scretionary authority on inflation proofing the permanent
fund. He noted that the overriding concern during the permanent
fund's early days was to save a renewable resource for future
debates and discussions about what the spending decisions are
for the state of Al aska.

He conceded that making a distribution and then deducting that
distribution hits the state's |owest earners and inconme folks;
however, the focus should be on the state's overall future. He
said he is fine with sone legislators interested in spending
reductions; however, once a determnation is nmade, legislators
have to figure out how to pay for their decisions. He asserted
that choices in budget cuts, taxes or PFD distribution are going
to have econom c consequences.

He sumari zed t hat he t hanked past | egi sl atures for
appropriating excess earnings into the permanent fund as well as
setting up the pernmanent fund to turn Alaska' s nonrenewabl e
resources into a renewable resource which is now the state's
| ar gest single source of revenue.

11:14: 33 AM

DONALD  VEESTLUND, representing hinself, Ket chi kan, Al aska,
testified in opposition of SB 1 and SB 2. He opined that nany
Al askans survived without the PFD. He remarked that the state
probably does not have the noney to put into PFD checks and
| egislators should focus on the state's current financial
probl ems. He suggested that an income tax be considered to close
the state's debt. He remarked that distributing a PFD and then
payi ng the state for an incone tax does not meke sense.

11: 18: 00 AM

JAKE JACOBSEN, representing hinmself and famly, Kodiak, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2. He said he initially
opposed the PFD because he considered it to be a form of
socialism but he came to understand that as owners of Alaska's
owner state, the PFD is Alaskans' due as a share distribution
whet her needed or not.

11:19: 32 AM
M KE COONS, representing hinself, Palmer, Alaska, testified in
support of SB 1 and SB 2, specifically due to their inmpact on

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- January 28, 2017



the econony. He said he questioned Governor Wl ker's statenent
that keeping half of the PFD would help reduce the budget. He
opined that the real reason for the state's recession is a
conmbi nation of not paying the oil industry the credits that are
in statute and the state's econom c uncertainty. He asked that
state governnment stop spending the people's noney and cut the
budget to sustai nable |evels.

11:22: 40 AM

JEFFREY VAN ZANDT, representing hinmself, Tok, Alaska, testified
in support of SB 1 and SB 2. He opined that the taking of the
PFD is crimnal and has hurt poor people. He asked that the
gover nment make budget cuts and restore the PFD

11: 25: 09 AM

JIM "HOTAI" WLLIAMS, representing hinself, Valdez, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2. He opined that the taking
of the PFD by the governor is a crine.

11: 27: 53 AM

DR. BARBARA HANEY, representing herself, North Pole, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2. She asserted that the
governor's PFD veto exasperated the "depression” in the area
north of the Alaska Range. She opined that the governor's
econom ¢ nodel has serious philosophical and economc flaws. She
asked that the PFD not be restructured and asked that the anount
of nmoney from the PFD veto be restored. She set forth that the
governor's veto was the nost regressive tax.

11: 29: 58 AM

JAMES SQUYRES, representing hinmself, Deltana, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 1 and SB 2. He asserted that the governor's
veto had taken $5 million directly out of the Deltana's |oca
econony. He concurred with the |ISER study that cutting the PFD
has the hardest effect on the private econony.

11: 32: 14 AM

PAMELA GOOD, representing herself, Deltana, Al aska, testified in
support of SB 1 and SB 2. She asserted that the permanent fund,
PFD and oil revenues belong to the people and the Legislature
was supposed to be wi se stewards of the state's nobney. She set
forth that governnent is too big and the PFD noney should be
returned to the people.

11: 35:16 AM
DENNY KAY WEATHERS, representing herself, Hawkins Island-Prince
WIllianms Sound, Alaska, testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- January 28, 2017



She believed that Governor Wl ker was wong when he vetoed half
of Alaska's PFD checks the previous year. She opined that an
overwhelmng majority of voters felt the same way and noted a
survey that Governor Wil ker's popularity dropped sharply after
his veto. She set forth that the Senate was wong in not taking
action. She noted that the governor was quoted in a 2014 where
he stated that he had no intention to inplenment a statew de tax
or paying for state government by reducing PFD checks. She
explained that the permanent fund was created to keep the
gover niment from spending the oil-wealth recklessly. She
summari zed that Al aska does not need any new taxes nor does the
PFD need to be surrendered. She set forth that government needs
to be cut and overspendi ng stopped.

11: 39: 38 AM

RHONA VAN ZANDT, representing herself, Tok, Alaska, testified in
support of SB 1 and SB 2. She said the rural communities have
been devastated and forgotten. She revealed that her fanm |y uses
the PFD to pay for wood to heat their hone and buy groceries.
She set forth that the PFD should remain with the people. She
asserted that the people in the rural communities have |ost
total trust and faith in Al aska's governnent.

11: 42: 05 AM

GARY  MCDONALD, representing hi nsel f, Anchor age, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2. He opined that 99 percent
of the people want their PFD back and not to touch it. He said
he is upset with the governor and wll never vote for him again.

11:43: 20 AM

CHRI STINE  NEES, representing herself, Anchor age, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2. She remarked that if
al l oned, voters would repeal the governor's veto. She said the
PFD is her share of Alaska's oil wealth as well as her famly's
share. She remarked that l|egislators need to cut into the budget
before reaching into her wallet and the wallets of other
citizens. She said she is tired of legislators and the governor
| ooking for a quick fix, which is an irresponsible and | azy act.

11: 44: 50 AM

FRI EDRI CH ZI MMERMVAN, representing hinself, Anchorage, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2. He asked that the PFD be
reinstated that way it was.

11:45: 59 AM
WLLI AM WEATHERBY, representing hinself, King Salnon, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2. He revealed that he ran

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- January 28, 2017



as a candidate for the House the previous year and noted that a
common thene was how hard people were inpacted by only getting
half of their PFD. He explained that the cost of living is high
in Alaska's rural villages and asked that the other half of the
PFD be returned so that residents can provide for thenselves.

11:49: 54 AM

CHARLOTTE  NAYAGAK, representing herself, Chevak, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2. She asserted that true
Al askan people were neant to be given their PFD. She set forth
that the PFD is needed for her famly's needs.

11:52:11 AM
BYRON CHARLES, representing hinself, Ketchikan, Al aska, did not
provi de a position on SB 1 or SB 2.

11:55: 36 AM

VI CTOR NAYAGAK, representing hinself, Chevak, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 1 and SB 2. He said the PFD trenmendously
inpacts a low incone famly. He pointed out that no PFD to spend
means no noney goes back into the econony. He stated that
getting the second half of the PFD would help his famly out a
| ot.

11: 57: 50 AM

TOM BOUTIN, representing hinself, Juneau, Al aska, testified in
support of SB 1 and SB 2. He set forth that the PFD gives
Al askans flexibility, especially wth the |Ilikelihood that
Al askans mi ght have to purchase sonme of the governnent services
they enjoy that the state can no |onger afford. He opined that
outside of the southern states during Reconstruction, no state
has ever faced the kind of econom c change that Al aska faces. He
pointed out that the state faces a profound inbalance of
consunption versus production. He noted that if he and his wfe
had saved all of the PFDs and invested at 6 percent, the tota

woul d have been $260,000, an anount that would have provided
financial flexibility. He summarized that everybody had choices
and Al askans continue to have choices with the PFD, SB 1 and SB
2 continue those choi ces.

12: 00: 57 PM

JEANINE ST. JOHN, representing herself, Anchorage, Al aska,
testified in opposition of SB 1 and SB 2. She asserted that the
fiscal situation should have actually been resolved |ast year
and part of the permanent-fund earnings should have been part of
the solution that would have stabilized governnment services and
resulted in a $1,000 PFD check anyway; however, the veto by the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- January 28, 2017



governor did not reduce the budget and rmaintained the
Legislature's ability to nake changes in the revenue portion of
the state's fiscal plan. She set forth that overriding the
governor's veto and giving out the PFD nobney is not a good
solution or even the right thing to do. She asserted that
distributing the PFD and then having to cone up with a revenue
source to fill the bigger hole is not |eadership. She remarked
that giving out noney mght be good for votes, but not good for
policy. She asserted that she and her famly are willing to step
up and help pay for services and everyone, including out-of-
state workers, should contribute as well. She opined that the
state cannot cut its way out and the two bills do not help with
t he sol ution.

12: 04: 44 PM

LAURA  CLARK- MAKETA, representing herself, Pal mer, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2. She said the PFD veto
really effects the lowest 10 percent of incone earners in
Al aska. She explained that she relied on the PFD to hel p pay her
bills. She asserted that the governor can only take her PFD if
she receives her subsurface rights in-kind. She set forth that
the PFD should not be touched until the size and spending of
government is addressed. She pointed out that oil conpani es have
reduced and asked why state governnent has not reduced as well.

12: 07: 47 PM

WLLIAM  TOPEL, representing hi msel f, Anchor age, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2. He said he wtnessed the
formati on of the permanent fund and PFD, both are state prograns
t hat have worked well and are nodels for the world. He renmarked
that Governor Walker's action to cap the 2016 PFD through his
appropriation veto has not been used to offset the state's
fiscal problems, but his action has nade the lives of many
Al askans nore difficult. He asserted that the governor's veto
had a $1 billion effect on Al aska' s econony, worsened the
state's recession, placed nore Al askans below the poverty I|ine
and reduced retail sales in the private sector. He set forth
that the PFD belongs to the people of Alaska, not state
government. He remarked that the PFD represents individual
Al askans' shares to a comonly held resource wealth. He
sumari zed that there needs to be a sustainable budget approach,
continued spending cuts to state governnent, and restoration of
PFD paynents to Al askans as proposed by SB 1 and SB 2.

12:10: 31 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY recogni zed that Representative Tamm e WIson was
listening to the commttee neeting, online.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- January 28, 2017



12:10: 44 PM

JIM SYKES, representing hinself, Palner, Al aska, testified in
support of SB 1 and SB 2. He said he concurred with forner
senator Halford's comments. He remarked that he has not heard
the Legislature address how the state's budget crisis can be
solved while |eaving the permanent fund intact. He asserted that
inflation proofing the permanent fund and annually paying out
the PFD are the glue that has held the whole thing together and
needs to conti nue.

He suggested that Alaskans reflect on forner Al aska governor
Hanmond' s statenent that taxing back sone of the pernmanent fund
is better than allowing the transfer of the permanent fund
directly to governnment; a salient point because paying the PFD
sends noney through the Al aska econony where people nmay have to
pay sone of it back through a possible incone tax.

He remarked that in 2016, the Legislature did not take their
responsibility to neet spendable budgets and the governor did
not have the authority to raise revenue. He suggested that
solving the state's budget problem is going to take a
conmbination of cuts and efficiencies; however, the Legislature
is the only authority that can raise revenue. He opined that the
state cannot cut its way out of the budget crisis and revenues
will have be raised. He pointed out that changes can be
tenporary. He summarized that he supported SB 1 and SB 2 in
concept, and the bills should be part of a |arger package.

12: 13: 49 PM
At ease.

12: 46: 07 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY called the commttee back to order

12: 46: 22 PM

ANDREW FRAI LERY- AFANASYEV, representing hinmself and the Al aska
native-rural population, Fairbanks, Alaska, testified in support
of SB 1 and SB 2. He asserted that the PFD is a vital part of
the incone of native Alaskan families who face severe poverty,
extrenely harsh living conditions, and degradation of their
subsistence lifestyle. He advocated for the restoration and
payout of the PFD.

12:47: 37 PM
TARYN LUSKLEET, representing herself and famly, North Pole,
Al aska, testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2. She said the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- January 28, 2017



peopl e's PFD should be returned to the people. She asserted that
the noney vetoed from the PFD would not nake a dent in the
budget and noted that the noney was sitting aside in an account
not doing anything. She disclosed that she had planned to use
the PFD for her children's coll ege expenses. She remarked that
not receiving the full PFD had a huge inpact on simlar famlies
that are earning just barely "above the line" where famlies
"below the line" would qualify for services. She sunmarized that
the state should operate within its neans.

12: 50: 44 PM

VANESSA PLATTER, representing herself, Eagle River, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2. She asked that the
proposed PFD be returned. She opined that Al askans should at
| east have a vote on sonething as inportant as their PFD

12:53: 37 PM

GERRI T  SOUTHLAND, representing hinself, W angel | , Al aska,
testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2. He remarked that what
Governor Wal ker did was wong and the PFD should go back to
Al askans.

12:55:26 PM

NORAH SMART, representing herself and her grandchildren, Hooper
Bay, Al aska, testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2. She said
living in rural Al aska is expensive and the noney from the PFD
i S needed.

12:56: 59 PM
At ease.

12:57: 12 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY called the commttee back to order

1: 30:11 PM

EVELYNN  TREFON, representing hersel f, Newhal en, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2. She said the people have
a right to the PFD noney due to the law as currently witten.
She remarked that she also supported the governor on taking
action in trying to protect Al askans by trying to bal ance the
budget. She pointed out that capping the PFD at $1,000 would
mean having the PFD for the next 20 years.

1: 32: 17 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if Ms. Trefon is in support of SB 1 and SB
2.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- January 28, 2017



M5. TREFON answered that she supported SB 1 and SB 2 because of
the way the law is currently witten. She renmarked that she
appl auded CGovernor Wl ker for doing sonething to try to generate
t he conversation about the state's financial situation.

1:33: 00 PM
WLLIAM RElI NER, representing hinself, Anchor age, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2.

1: 33: 58 PM
At ease.

1: 40: 20 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY called the commttee back to order

1: 40: 36 PM

ELI ZABETH BREUKER, representing herself, Del t ana, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 1 and SB 2. She said she was angry
with the Legislature in allowng the governor to steal her
children's PFD. She suggested that the Legislature get its
spending intact. She remarked that the PFD veto had directly
taken noney out of the Al askan economnmy. She asserted that her
m neral rights should be given back if the PFD is going to be
t aken away.

1:43: 59 PM

JOHN SONIN, representing hinself, Juneau, Al aska, testified in
support of SB 1 and SB 2. He set forth that the PFD puts funds
into Al aska's econony.

1:47:16 PM

DELI CE CALCOTE, representing herself, Sutton, Alaska, testified
in support of SB 1 and SB 2. She set forth that the PFD veto
effected children, single parents, rel eased inmates, t he
unenployed in tribal conmunities, and people in |owcost
housing. She inquired if the state saw an increase in theft and
crine due to the PFD veto. She questioned the percentage of
Al askan businesses that the Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation
invests in. She summarized that the noney should be given back
to the people and for the Al aska Pernmanent Fund Corporation to
make better investnent choices.

1:51:33 PM

ROSS BI ELING representing hinself, Anchorage, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 1 and SB 2. He asserted that the state was in a
situation forecasted by an I SER report that a PFD cut woul d have
a denonstrative effect and lead to a recession. He said the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21- January 28, 2017



governor nade a mistake in his PFD veto, but he understood the
peril that the state was in. He pointed out that a positive may
result fromthe recent oil discoveries. He said passage of SB 1
and SB 2 is needed for a solid econony so people do not |eave
and help avoid a long-term effect on the state, such as
providing the ability to invest in oil-tax credits.

1: 53: 08 PM
At ease.

1:53: 17 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY called the commttee back to order.

1:53: 33 PM

PAMELA BRODI E, representing herself, Honer, Al aska, testified in
support of SB 1 and SB 2. She conceded that the Legislature is
facing a difficult problem with unattractive possibilities that
hurt people, but taking noney out of the PFD is the worst
possi ble solution with the nost danmaging effect to the econony.
She asserted that taking the PFD is the equivalent of taxing
every Al askan $1,000 regardless of their ability to pay. She
asserted that instituting an incone tax would be fairer. She
suggested that subsidies to the oil industry be cut as well as
cutting noney to the proposed gas |ine.

1: 56: 45 PM
At ease.

1:58:47 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY called the committee back to order. He thanked
those that testified on SB 1 and SB 2 and held the bills in
commttee for further consideration.

1:59: 30 PM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair Dunleavy adjourned the Senate State Affairs Commttee at
1:59 p. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -22- January 28, 2017



